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Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844 (c)(1)(A)); Section 8(a)
of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. § 3106(a)); Sections
11(a)(1), 25 and 25A of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.S.C.
§§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); Section 211.13(c) of Regulation K
(12 C.F.R. § 211.13(c)); and Section 225.5(b) of Regulation Y (12
C.F.R. § 225.5(b)) and section 10(c)(2)(H) of the Home Owners'
Loan Act. Return to the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the
original and the number of copies specified.

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies and top-tier savings and loan holding companies organized
under U.S. law, and by any foreign banking organization that
does not meet the requirements of and is not treated as a qualify-
ing foreign banking organization under Section 211.23 of
Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 211.23). (See page one of the general
instructions for more detail of who must file.) The Federal
Reserve may not conduct or sponsor, and an organization (or a
person) is not required to respond to, an information collection
unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed
by one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual
should also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In
the event that the top-tier holding company does not have an
individual who is a senior official and is also a director, the chair-
man of the board must sign the report.

I, Ben Scott
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

President and Director

Title of the Holding Company Director and Official
attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information,” 12 C.F.R. Part 261,
that the Reporter and individual con to public release of all
details in the concerning thatindividu

p A
Signature of Holding Company Director and Official
02/19/2016

Date of Signature
For holding companies not registered with the SEC—
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:
is included with the FR Y-6 report
[J will be sent under separate cover
[ is not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSD D / (02072

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):

December 31, 2015

Month / Day / Year

N/A
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address
Coleman Bancshares, Inc.
Legal Title of Holding Company

P O Box 940

(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box
Coleman X 76834
City State Zip Code

118 West Pecan Street, Coleman TX 76834

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Tawnya Davis Cashier, Coleman County
Name Title State Rank
325-625-2172

Area Code / Phone Number / Extension

325-625-5145

Area Code / FAX Number

tdavis@colemanbank.com

E-mail Address

www.colemanbank.com

Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Does the reporter request confidential treatment for any portion of this
submission?

D Yes Please identify the report items to which this request applies:

In accordance with the instructions on pages GEN-2
and 3, a letter justifying the request is being provided.

D The information for which confidential treatment is sought
is being submitted separately labeled "Confidential."

No

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.25 hours per response, including time to gather and
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551, and to the

Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington, DC 20503.

12/2015



Form FR Y-6
Coleman Bancshares, Inc.
Coleman, Texas
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015

Report item
1: Coleman Bancshares, Inc., prepares an annual report for it's shareholders.

Two copies are enclosed.

2a: Organization Chart

COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC.
COLEMAN, TEXAS
INCORPORATED IN TEXAS

..........................................................................................

COLEMAN COUNTY STATE BANK
COLEMAN, TEXAS
CHARTERED IN TEXAS

..........................................................................................

2b: Domestic Branch Listing
Submitted via email on

Copy attached. M E ND E
| JUL 18 2016

No entity in the organization has a LEI
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC.,
AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

December 31, 2015 and 2014

FOUNDED ON PRINCIPLE
FOCUSED ON SERVICE
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Coleman, Texas
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993 North Third Street
PO Box 2993

Abilene, Texas 79604-2993
phone 325-677-6251

fax 325-677-0006

www.condley.com

_ondle

AND COMPANY, LLP

Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors

March 2, 2016

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary
Coleman, Texas

Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary (the
“Company”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of their consolidated operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Cw%ymwé @W, L.LP.

Certified Public Accountants



COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2015 2014
ASSETS

Cash and due from banks:

Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin $ 2,637,183 $ 1,913,175

Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 5,712,663 10,409,774
Securities available-for-sale 14,759,793 11,827,128
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,288,629 and $784,878 for

2015 and 2014, respectively 81,103,605 77,461,145
Accrued interest receivable 604,868 669,230
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $407,260 424,590 424,590
Premises and equipment, net 2,426,628 2,417,217
Other assets 247,349 503,372

TOTAL ASSETS

&

107,916,679 § 105,625,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

.
]



LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:

Demand deposits
Savings and NOW deposits

Other time deposits

Total deposits

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common stock - $10 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, 67,294
shares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Stockholders' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$

December 31,

2015 2014
31,672,336 $ 29,681,996
46,762,920 46,831,762
18,522,834 18,435,556
96,958,090 94,949,314

202,371 155,436
97,160,461 95,104,750
672,940 672,940
1,521,144 1,521,144
8,636,832 8,450,226
(74,698) (123,429)
10,756,218 10,520,881
107,916,679 $ 105,625,631




COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans receivable $
Securities available-for-sale
Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions

Total Interest Income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits

Total Interest Expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Service charges and fees
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities
Other income

Total Other Income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense
Deposit insurance premium
Other expenses

Total Other Expenses

NET INCOME $

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (See Independent Auditors' Report on
Supplementary Information ):

Net income per share of common stock $

Average shares outstanding

2015 2014
4,578,984 § 4,564,667
244,289 201,552
25,257 23,217
4,848,530 4,789,436
191,816 227,359
191,816 227,359
4,656,714 4,562,077
522,691 64,500
4,134,023 4,497,577
964,035 871,620
529 0
82,773 84,761
1,047,337 956,381
1,549,633 1,511,473
369,501 293,828
53,413 49,791
1,524,915 1,453,244
3,497,462 3,308,336
1,683,898 § 2,145,622
25.02 % 31.88
67,294 67,294

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014
NET INCOME $ 1,683,898 $ 2,145,622
Other items of comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gain arising during period 49,260 269,926
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (529) 0
Total other items of comprehensive income 48,731 269,926
Comprehensive income before tax 1,732,629 2,415,548
Income tax expense related to other items of comprehensive income 0 0
Comprehensive income after tax S 1,732,629 § 2,415,548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

6



COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 $
Net income for 2014

Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes of $0

Dividends on common stock, $20.00 per share

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Net income for 2015

Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes of $0

Dividends on common stock, $22.25 per share

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 $

Additional
Common Paid-In
Stock Capital
672,940 $ 1,521,144
672,940 1,521,144
672,940 $ 1,521,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

7



$—

Accumulated

Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
7,650,484 (393,35%) 9,451,213
2,145,622 2,145,622
269,926 269,926
(1,345,880) (1,345,880)
8,450,226 (123,429) 10,520,881
1,683,898 1,683,898
48,731 48,731
(1,497,292) (1,497,292)
8,636,832 (74,698) 10,756,218




COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization and accretion
Provision for loan losses
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities
Net realized loss on sale of foreclosed assets
(Increase) Decrease in accrued income and other assets
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from maturities and sales of available-for-sale securities
Net increase in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in non-interest bearing demand, savings,
and NOW deposit accounts
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits
Dividends paid

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Due From Banks
Cash and due from banks at January 1

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS AT DECEMBER 31

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid (state taxes)

NONCASH AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repossessions acquired in settlement of loans

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014
1,683,898 § 2,145,622
154,153 130,419

55,519 71,326
522,691 64,500
9,327 0
(529) 0

0 24,084
320,385 (40,875)
46,935 16,773
1,108,481 266,227
2,792,379 2,411,849

(64,035,803) (3,510,435)

61,096,879 2,840,670

(4,165,151) (1.260,746)
(172,891) (264,374)

0 34,701

(7,276,966) (2,160,184)
1,921,498 10,047,931
87,278 (666,057)

(1,497,292) (1,345,880)
511,484 8,035,994

(3,973,103) 8,287,659

12,322,949 4,035,290
8,349,846 $ 12,322,949
194,939 § 232,825

12,835 $ 10,050
0 $ 12,047




NOTE 1:

COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,2015 and 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., (“Bancshares”)
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Coleman County State Bank, (the “Bank™) collectively referred to as the
"Company". All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America and general industry practices.

Nature of Operations

The Company conducts domestic financial services business through its bank in Coleman, Texas and its
branch in Abilene, Texas. The primary financial services provided by the Company include commercial,
agricultural, real estate financing, and personal and business loans to customers who are predominantly
small and middle-market businesses and middle-income individuals.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, and due from banks includes cash on hand
and demand deposits at other financial institutions including cash items in process of clearing and federal
funds sold under agreements to resell, all of which mature within 90 days. Cash flows from loans and
deposits are reported net.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

The Company, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") system, is required to maintain an
investment in capital stock of the FHLB in an amount equal to the greater of 1% of its outstanding home
loans or 5% of advances from the FHLB. No ready market exists for the FHLB stock, and it has no quoted
market value. The balance of the stock totaled $95,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Banks

Interest-bearing deposits in banks mature within one year and are carried at cost.

Trading Securities

Securities held for sale in the near term are classified as trading account securities and recorded at their fair
values. Unrealized gains and losses on trading account securities are included immediately in other

income. No trading securities were owned by the Company during the years 2015 and 2014 or at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Securities Held-to-Maturity

Securities for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost,
adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest method over
the period to maturity.



Securities Available-for-Sale

Available-for-sale securities consist of securities not classified as trading securities nor as held-to-maturity
securities.

Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, on available-for-sale securities are reported as a net amount
in a separate component of stockholders’ equity until realized.

Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined using the specific-identification
method.

Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost,
that are other than temporary, result in write-downs of the individual 'securities to their fair value. The
related write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses. The Company had no write-downs other
than temporary in 2015 or 2014.

Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to
maturity.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are those loans the Company has the intent to sell in the foreseeable future. They are
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through
a valuation allowance by charges to income. Gains and losses on sales of loans are recognized at
settlement dates and are determined by the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value of
the loans. There were no gains or losses realized on loans sold during the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014.

Loans Receivable

The Company generally originates single-family residential loans within its primary lending area in
Coleman and Abilene, Texas. The Company's underwriting policies require such loans to be 80% loan to
value based upon appraised values unless private mortgage insurance is obtained. These loans are secured
by the underlying properties. The Company is also active in originating secured consumer loans to its
customers, primarily automobile loans.

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or pay-off are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by unearned discount and fees and
an allowance for loan losses. Unearned interest on discounted loans is amortized to income over the life of
the loans, using the interest method. For all other loans, interest is accrued daily on the outstanding
balances.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that loan origination fees
and certain direct origination costs be capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related
loan. The Company has not done this to date as these fees and costs are not material to the financial
statements.

Discounts and premiums on purchased residential real estate loans are amortized to income using the
interest method over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated prepayments.
Discounts and premiums on purchased consumer loans are recognized over the expected lives of the loans
using methods that approximate the interest method. The Company had no residential real estate or
consumer purchased loans during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

For impaired loans, accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after
considering collection efforts and other factors that the borrower's financial condition is such that collection
of interest is doubtful. Cash collections on impaired loans are credited to the loan receivable balance, and
no interest income is recognized on those loans until the principal balance has been collected.

A loan is considered to be delinquent when payments have not been made according to contractual terms,
typically evidenced by nonpayment of a monthly installment by the due date. The accrual of interest on
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loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well-secured and in the
process of collection.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status or charged off is
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-
recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the

principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably
assured.

Each segment of loans has specific risks associated based on the nature of the loan. Loans secured by real
estate are influenced by real estate market conditions in the area in which the property is located as well as
the type of property the loan is secured by. Agriculture loans are subject to market prices as well as the
local weather conditions in determining future repayment and value of collateral. Commercial and
consumer loans are also subject to the local and national economic atmosphere, and the industry in which
the entity conducts business.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans
are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectability of the
principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses related
to specifically identified loans, as well as probable credit losses inherent in the balance of the loan
portfolio, based on an evaluation of the collectability of existing loans and prior loss experience. This
evaluation also takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that
may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. This evaluation does not include the effects of expected losses on
specific loans or groups of loans that are related to future events or expected changes in economic
conditions.  While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future
adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions. In
addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’s allowance for loan losses, and may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance based on
their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations.

The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components. The specific component relates
to loans that are classified as either special mention, substandard, or doubtful. For such loans that are also
classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general
component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's
estimate of probable losses. The uncollected component of the allowance reflects the margin of
imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and
general losses in the portfolio. This methodology is consistent among all classes of loans.

A loan is impaired when it is probable, based on current information and events, the Company will be
unable to collect all contractual principal and interest payments due in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured on an individual basis for commercial and construction loans
based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or,
as a practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. The amount of impairment, if any, and any subsequent changes are included in the
allowance for loan losses.

Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately indentify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment disclosures.
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Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings are initially recorded at fair value at the date of
foreclosure less estimated costs of disposal, which establishes a new cost. After foreclosure, valuations are
periodically performed by management and foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or
fair value less estimated costs of disposal. Any write-down to fair value at the time of transfer to
foreclosed assets is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Property is evaluated regularly to ensure the
recorded amount is supported by its current fair value and valuation allowances to reduce the carrying
amount to fair value less estimated costs to dispose are recorded as necessary. Revenue and expense from
the operations of foreclosed assets and changes in the valuation allowance are included net expenses from
foreclosed assets.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Company premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization computed principally by the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was
$154,153 and $130.419 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 2001, Bancshares elected by unanimous consent of its stockholders to be taxed under
the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under such election, Bancshares’ federal
taxable income or loss is passed through to the individual stockholders for the year 2001 and for years
thereafter. Since the Company has maintained its Subchapter S status, management has not identified any
instances where an adjustment to the financial statements would be necessary in order to comply with ASC
740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer
subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. federal, state or local tax authorities for years before 2012.
State franchise taxes totaled $12,835 and $10,050 for the years ended December 3 1,2015 and 2014, and is
included in “Other expenses™ on the consolidated statements of income due to the overall immateriality.

Loan-Servicing Rights

The cost of loan-servicing rights acquired is amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated
net servicing revenues. When participating interests in loans sold have an average contractual interest rate,
adjusted for normal servicing fees, that differs from the agreed yield to the purchaser, gains or losses are
recognized equal to the present value of such differential over the estimated remaining life of such loans.
The resulting “excess servicing fees receivable” or “deferred servicing revenue” is amortized over the
estimated life using a method approximating the interest method.

The unamortized cost of loan-servicing rights purchased, the excess servicing fees receivable, and the
amortization thereon is periodically evaluated in relation to estimated future net servicing revenues, taking
into consideration changes in interest rates, current prepayment rates, and expected future cash flows. The
Company evaluates the carrying value of the servicing portfolio by estimating the future net servicing
income of the portfolio based on management’s best estimate of remaining loan lives. The Company had
no loan servicing rights at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Financial Instruments

Interest-Rate Exchange Agreements. Interest-rate exchange agreements (swaps), used in asset/liability
management activities, are accounted for using the accrual method. Gains or losses on the sales of swaps
used in asset/liability management activities are deferred and amortized into interest income or expense
over the maturity period of the swap. Net interest income (expense), resulting from the differential
between exchanging floating and fixed-rate interest payments is recorded on a current basis. The Company
did not enter into any such agreements during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,

Financial Futures. Interest-rate futures contracts may be entered into by the Company as hedges against
exposure to interest-rate risk and not for speculation purposes. Changes in the market value of interest-rate
futures contracts are deferred and amortized into interest income or expense over the maturity period of the
hedged assets or liabilities. The Company did not enter into any such agreements during the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

13



Financial Options. Option premiums received for writing puts and calls are recorded as a liability
representing the market value of the option. The liability is to be subsequently marked to market at each
balance sheet date. The Company did not receive any financial options during the years ended December
31,2015 and 2014,

Other Off-Balance Sheet Instruments. In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off-
balance sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit
card arrangements, commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments
are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of the minority shareholders’ common stock in Coleman County
State Bank, acquired over the book value of the stock at the date of acquisition. Accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America does not allow for amortization of goodwill effective
for the year of 2002 and beyond in accordance with Statement of ASC 350-10, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. ASC 350-10 prescribes a periodic impairment test of goodwill, which the Company has
completed and determined no impairment issues for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 2, 2016, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2014-09 and ASU 2015-14

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) issued substantially converged final standards on revenue recognition. The FASB’s
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue Srom Contracts with Customers, was issued in
three parts: (1) Section A, “Summary and Amendments That Create Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and Other Assets and Deferred Costs — Contracts With Customers™; (2) Section B, “Conforming
Amendments to Other Topics and Subtopics in the Codification and Status Tables™; and (3) Section C,
“Background Information and Basis for Conclusions”. In August 2015, ASU 2015-14 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date was issued.

ASU 2014-09 provides a robust framework for addressing revenue recognition issues and, upon its
effective date, replaces almost all existing revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific
guidance, in current U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This standard will help with
improved comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, Jurisdictions, and
capital markets. Given the broad applicability and potentially significant ramifications of the guidance in
the ASU a deferral of the effective date was made with ASU 2015-14, and the ASU will not be effective
until 2018 for calendar end public entities, which includes not-for-profit entities that have issued, or are
conduit bond obligors for, securities that are traded, listed or quoted on an exchange or an over the count
market and in 2019 for all other entities.

ASU 2014-02

In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) through consensus of the Private
Company Council issued ASU 2014-02 Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) — Accounting for
Goodwill.  As an alternative to the cost and complexity with applying the current goodwill accounting
practice and the limited relevance to users this ASU allows for the amortization of goodwill on a straight-
line basis over 10 years, or less than 10 years if the entity demonstrates that another useful life is more
appropriate. An entity that makes the election is further required to make an accounting policy election to
test goodwill for impairment at either the entity level or the reporting unit level when a triggering event
occurs.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force)
and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants did not or are not believed by management to
have a material impact on the Company's present or future financial statements.



NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

Use of Estimates

In preparing the accompany financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of and revenue and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. A material estimate that is particularly sensitive to significant change in
the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.

RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Company is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank,

based on a percentage of deposits. The total of those reserve balances were $1,101,000 and $1,215,000 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets according to
management’s intent. The carrying amount of securities and their approximate fair values at December 31,
were as follows:

2015
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government and
agency securities $ 5,003,903 $ 0 3 (5,533) $ 4,998,370
Mortgage-backed securities 4,262,739 11,184 (46,447) 4,227,476
Collateralized mortgage
obligation securities 1,037,571 0 (39,304) 998,267
Treasury securities 1,035,800 0 (1,360) 1,034,440
State and municipal securities 3,494,478 6,762 0 3,501,240

§ 14,834,491 § 17,946 § (92,644) $ 14,759,793

2014
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government and
agency securities $ 2006480 $ 0 3 (1,150) $ 2,005,330
Mortgage-backed securities 5,115,980 30,186 (59,935) 5,086,231
Collateralized mortgage
obligation securities 1,209,285 0 (53,304) 1,155,981
State and municipal securities 3,618,811 1,720 (40,946) 3,579,586

§ 11,950,556 $ 31,906 §  (155,335) $ 11,827,128




The scheduled maturities of securities available-for-sale at December 31, 201 S, were as follows:

Available-for-sale

Securities
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 320,349 § 320,291
Due from one year to five years 7,667,929 7,660,105
Due from five years to ten years 1,545,904 1,553,656
Due after ten years 5,300,309 5,225,741

$ 14,834,491 $ 14,759,793

Securities carried at approximately $8,984.799 at December 31, 2015 and $9,230,593 at December 31,
2014, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law.

The Company held the following investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position
December 31, 2015:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Unrealized Unrealized
FMV Loss FMV Loss
U.S. government and agency
securities $ 0 $ 0% 2,989,430 §$ (10,110)
Mortgage-backed securities 2.589.486 (50,797) 0 0
Collateralized mortgage obligation
securities 998,267 (39,304) 0 0
Treasury securities 0 0 1,034,440 (1,360)
State and municipal securities 0 0 1,144,250 (1,157)
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 3,587,753 $ (90,101) $ 5,168,120 $ (12,627)

The Company held the following investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position
December 31, 2014:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Unrealized Unrealized
FMV Loss FMV Loss
U.S. government and agency
securities $ 1,005,330 $ (1,150) $ 0 $ 0
Mortgage-backed securities 0 0 3,107,907 (59,935)
Collateralized mortgage obligation
securities 0 0 1,155,981 (53,304)
State and municipal securities 319,627 (334) 1,510,363 (40,612)
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 1324957 $ (1,484) § 5,774,251 $  (153,851)

The above tables disclose the Company’s investment securities that have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position. The investment securities in the above tables are investments believed by management to be
normal investments for the banking industry. The Company does not believe the unrealized loss position
securities are “other than temporary” as (i) the Company has the ability to hold the investments to maturity,
(if) it is not probable that the Company will be unable to collect the amounts contractually, and (iii) no
decision to dispose of the investments was made prior to the balance sheet date. Mana gement believes the
unrealized loss position securities noted above are caused by interest rate fluctuations. No credit issues
were identified related to the unrealized loss position securities.
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LOANS RECEIVABLE

The components of loans in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 were as follows:

2015 2014

Commercial $ 10,323,902 $ 9,976,675
Agriculture 7,429,309 8,338,276
Real estate 61,025,624 56,544,268
Consumer 3,550,038 3,331,580
Overdrafts 72,411 68,721
Other (9,050) (13,497)
Subtotal 82,392,234 78,246,023
Allowance for loan losses (1,288,629) (784,878)

$ 81,103,605 § 77.461,145

The Company purchased participations in loan agreements during 2015, with a total outstanding balance at
December 31, 2015 of $253,569. The total balance is considered to be loans for the purchase of residential
real estate. The total balance of purchased participation loan agreements at December 31, 2015 was
$253,569. The Company sold participations in loan agreements during 2015, with a total outstanding
balance at December 31, 2015 of $12.730,440, of which $5,897,487 is considered to be loans for
commercial purposes and $6,832,953 for non-farmland real estate. The total balance of participation sold
loan agreements at December 31, 2015 was $12,730,440.

An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan losses follows:

2015 2014
Balance at January 1, $ 784,878 § 746,982
Loans charged off (24,661) (36,196)
Recoveries 5,721 9,592

765,938 720,378
Provision for loan losses 522,691 64,500
Balance at December 31, $ 1,288,629 $ 784,878

A progression of the allowance for loan losses by type as of December 31, 2015 follows:

Beginning
Balance Charge-Offs Recoveries Provision Total
Commercial $ 245,522 §$ 0 2,486 $§ 479,691 $ 727,699
Agriculture 63,827 0 0 12,000 75,827
Real estate 425,761 0 0 14,000 439,761
Consumer 44,471 (1,652) 6 2,000 44,825
Other 5,297 (23,009) 3,229 15,000 517
Total $ 784,878 $ (24,661) $ 5,721 § 522,691 § 1,288,629




A progression of the allowance for loan losses by type as of December 31, 2014 follows:

Beginning
Balance Charge-Offs Recoveries Provision Total
Commercial § 226,428 §$ 0 3 3,094 $ 16,000 $ 245,522
Agriculture 48,827 0 0 15,000 63,827
Real estate 426,786 (17,025) 0 16,000 425,761
Consumer 43,519 (1,548) 0 2,500 44,471
Other 1,422 (17,623) 6,498 15,000 5,297
Total $ 746,982 $ (36,196) $ 9,592  § 64,500 S 784,878

The allowance for loan losses consists of the following components as of December 31, 2015:

Acquired
With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
Commercial $ 767,699 §$ 507,157  § 220,542 $ 0
Agriculture 75,827 0 75,827 0
Real estate 439,761 4,247 435,514 0
Consumer 44,825 0 44,825 0
Other 517 0 517 0
Total $ 1,288,629 $ 511,404 § 777,225 $ 0

The allowance for loan losses consists of the following components as of December 3 1,2014:

Acquired

With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
Commercial §$ 245522 $ 0 S 245,522 $ 0
Agriculture 63,827 60,755 3,072 0
Real estate 425,761 4,985 420,776 0
Consumer 44 471 0 44,471 0
Other 5,297 0 5,297 0
Total $ 784,878 S 65,740 $ 719,138 $ 0




Loans receivable were evaluated for the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2015 as follows:

Acquired
With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
Commercial $ 10,323,902 § 50,866 $ 10,273,036 § 0
Agriculture 7,429,309 0 7,429,309 0
Real estate 61,025,624 676,200 60,349,424 0
Consumer 3,550,038 0 3,550,038 0
Other 63,361 0 63,361 0
Total $ 82,392,234 § 727,066 $ 81,665,168 $ 0

Loans receivable were evaluated for the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2014 as follows:

Acquired
With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
Commercial $ 9,976,675 % 501 $ 9,976,174 § 0
Agriculture 8,338,276 166,754 8,171,522 0
Real estate 56,544,268 99,707 56,444,561 0
Consumer 3,331,580 0 3,331,580 0
Other 55,224 0 55,224 0
Total $ 78,246,023 $ 266,962 $ 77,979,061 $ 0

Certain credit quality indicators as used to develop the Bank’s allowance for loan losses by class of loans
receivable as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Total Loans

Pass OAEM Substandard Receivable

Commercial
General $ 1,627,291 § 0 $§ 0 $ 1,627,291
Vehicles and

equipment 6,360,139 193,106 2,143,366 8,696,611
Agriculture
Livestock 4,917,874 0 0 4,917,874
Vehicles and

equipment 2,151,659 158,668 0 2,310,327
Other 201,108 0 0 201,108
Real Estate
Farmland 8,964,087 294214 52,764 9,311,065
Commercial 5,067,959 0 0 5,067,959
Residential 17,283,681 733,364 344,408 18,361,453
Non-farmland 27,686,152 0 598,995 28,285,147



Total Loans

Pass OAEM Substandard Receivable
Consumer
Personal 1,041,909 22,107 0 1,064,016
Automobile 2,478,499 7,523 0 2,486,022
Other 63,361 0 0 63,361
Total $ 77,843,719 § 1,408,982 $ 3,139,533 § 82,392,234

Certain credit quality indicators as used to develop the Company’s allowance for loan losses by class of
loans receivable as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Total Loans
Pass OAEM Substandard Receivable

Commercial
General $ 3,191,110 $ 0 S 0 3 3,191,110
Vehicles and

equipment 6,785,064 0 501 6,785,565
Agriculture
Livestock 5,787,105 0 88,630 5,875,735
Vehicles and

equipment 2,125,984 0 78,124 2,204,108
Other 258,433 0 0 258,433
Real Estate
Farmland 12,098,021 347,772 0 12,445,793
Commercial 3,910,020 0 0 3,910,020
Residential 15,847,438 434,682 33,258 16,315,378
Non-farmland 23,806,627 0 66,449 23,873,076
Consumer
Personal 331,622 15,396 0 347,018
Automobile 2,966,935 17,627 0 2,984,562
Other 55,225 R 0 0 55,225
Total $ 77,163,584 § 815,477 $ 266,962 § 78,246,023

The Company utilizes an asset quality rating system in order to assess credit quality. The following ratings
are used for criticized and classified assets. All remaining assets are referred to as “Pass”.

Criticized Asset — OAEM — Loans in this category have existing or potential credit weaknesses that could
ultimately lead to a more sever classification. The weaknesses could relate to collateral, documentation,
finances, repayment ability, economic conditions, performance, or any other area. These assets should be
monitored closely for further deterioration.

Classified Asset — Substandard — Loans in this category have specific weaknesses that jeopardize the
liquidation of the debt. Collateral, net worth, insufficient cash flow to support borrowings, and loss
potential exists unless the deficiencies are corrected. These assets merit close attention and corrective
actions in order to ensure their ultimate collections.

Classified Asset — Doubtful — These loans have a high probability of loss. The extent of loss is not exactly

determinable due to mitigating factors that could enhance collectability of the loan such as proposed
mergers, acquisitions, liquidations procedures, capital injection, additional collateral, or refinancing efforts.
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Charge off of doubtful loans is made when appropriate and not necessarily deferred until a more exact
status can be ascertained.

Classified Asset — Loss — These loans are those that are not bankable assets in their present state. The loan
1s a recovery matter and while some recovery may be realized, debt satisfaction is not likely in the near

term.

The Company had no “Doubtful” or “Loss” assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014; therefore, they were
not included in the detail above.

Loans transferred to foreclosed assets totaled $0 and $12,047 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Loans on
non-accrual status totaled $108,144 and $166,804 at December 31, 2015 and 2014 respectively. Loans past
due over 90 days totaled $443,973 and $235,555 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
Company is not committed to lend additional funds to debtors whose loans have been modified.

The Company had the following investments in impaired loans as of December 3 1,:2015:

Commercial
Vehicles and
equipment

Agriculture

Livestock

Vehicles and
equipment

Real Estate
Residential
Non-farmland

Consumer
Automobile

Total

Commercial
Vehicles and
equipment

Agriculture

Livestock

Vehicles and
equipment

Real Estate
Residential

$

Average

Unpaid Quarterly Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
1,956,176  § 2,463,333 § 507,157  $ 62,796 $ 27,551
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
27,657 27,657 0 0 0
53,031 57,278 4,247 4,618 3,767
0 0 0 0 0
2,036,804 § 2548268 % 511,404 $ 67,414 $ 31,318

The Bank had the following investments in impaired loans as of December 31, 2014:
Average

Unpaid Quarterly Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
0 3 0 S 0 3 5,708 § 966
27,875 88,630 60,755 88,630 0
78,124 78,124 0 78,124 0
33,258 33,258 0 35,773 2,835
61,464 66,449 4,985 62,811 5,046

Non-farmland
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Average

Unpaid Quarterly Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
Consumer
Automobile 0 0 0 2,801 108
Total $ 200,721  $ 266,461 § 65,740 $ 273,847 § 8,955
The age analysis of past due financing receivables as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:
Days Past Due
Total
30-59 60-89 Greater than Total Loans
Days Days 90 Days' Past Due Current Receivable
Commercial
General $ 129,001 $ 0 3 0 $ 129,001 § 1,498,290 $ 1,627,291
Vehicles and
equipment 0 0 384,921 384,921 8,311,690 8,696,611
Agriculture
Livestock 22,905 0 0 22,905 4,894,969 4,917,874
Vehicles and
equipment 14,557 0 0 14,557 2,295,770 2,310,327
Other 0 0 0 0 201,108 201,108
Real Estate
Farmland 0 0 0 0 9,311,065 9,311,065
Commercial 0 0 0 0 5,067,959 5,067,959
Residential 764,073 16,237 0 780,310 17,581,143 18,361,453
Non-
farmland 195,201 0 57,278 252,479 28,032,668 28,285,147
Consumer
Personal 36,220 0 661 36,881 1,027,135 1,064,016
Automobile 70,610 11,163 1,113 82,886 2,403,136 2,486,022
Other 0 0 0 0 63,361 63,361
Total § 1,232,567 $ 27,400 $ 443973 § 1,703,940 $ 80,688,294 $ 82,392,234

'Loans totaling $386,695 past due greater than ninety days were accruing interest as of December 31, 2015 as

management believes they are adequately collateralized and in process of collection.
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NOTE 5:

The age analysis of past due financing receivables as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Commercial
General

Vehicles and
equipment

Agriculture
Livestock
Vehicles and

equipment
Other

Real Estate
Farmland

Commercial
Residential

Non-
farmland

Consumer
Personal
Automobile

Other
Total

$

Days Past Due

Total

30-59 60-89 Greater than Total Loans
Days Days 90 Days! Past Due Current Receivable
0 $ 0 0 $ 0 3,191,110 ' § 3,191,110
319,146 50,000 501 369,647 6,415,918 6,785,565
1,088 9,000 90,480 100,568 5,775,167 5,875,735
99,495 11,000 78,124 188,619 2,015,489 2,204,108
0 0 0 0 258,433 258,433
88,692 120,966 0 209,658 12,236,135 12,445,793
0 0 0 0 3,910,020 3,910,020
497,567 19,313 0 516,880 15,798,498 16,315,378
223,072 0 66,449 289,521 23,583,555 23,873,076
27,655 2,461 0 30,116 316,902 347,018
24,698 35,077 0 59,775 2,924,787 2,984,562
0 0 0 0 55,225 55,225
1,281,413 $ 247,817 235,554 '§ 1,764,784 $ 76,481,239 $ 78,246,023

'Loans totaling $68,750 past due greater than ninety days were accruing interest as of December 31, 2014 as
management believes they are adequately collateralized and in process of collection.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Components of premises and equipment included in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, were
as follows:

2015 2014
Cost:
Land $ 574,305 $ 574,304
Bank premises 2,935,064 2,969,831
Furniture and equipment 1,159,412 2,229,440
Total cost 4,668,781 5,173,575
Less accumulated depreciation (2,242,153) (3,356,358)
Net book value $ 2,426,628 $ 2,417.217

Certain Company facilities and equipment are leased under various operating leases. Rental expense was
$11,894 in 2014 and $11,175 in 2015. Payment requirements for operating leases for the fiscal years
ending 2016, 2017, and 2018 are $9,929, $9,929, and $2,349 respectively.
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NOTE 6:

NOTE 7:

DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, follows:

2015 2014
Non-interest bearing demand § 31,672,336 $  29.681,996
Interest-bearing demand 39,919,023 40,177,243
Savings 6,843,897 6,654,519
Certificates of deposit of $100,000
or more 11,603,484 11,158,866
Other time deposits 6,919,350 7,276,690

$ 96,958,090 $ 94949314

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, overdraft demand deposits reclassified to loans totaled $72,411 and
$68.721, respectively.

At December 31, 2015, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposits and other time deposits are as
follows:

Year ending
2016 $ 13,994,883
2017 927,282
2018 96,440
2019 and thereafter 3,504,229

$ 18,522,834

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit. They involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent
of the Company’s involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based
on management’s credit evaluation of the counterpart. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, crops, livestock, inventory, property, plant and equipment, residential real estate, income-
producing commercial properties and other financial instruments.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies and is required in instances in
which the Company deems necessary.
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NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments in either 2015 or 2014.

A summary of the notional amounts of the Company’s financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at
December 31, 2013, follows:

Notional

Amount
Commitments to extend credit $ 12,082,658
Standby letters of credit 484,785

SIGNIFICANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers located within its market area. Investments in
state and municipal securities involve governmental entities within the state. Although the Company’s loan
portfolio is diversified, there is a relationship in this region between the agricultural economy and the
economic performance of loans made to nonagricultural customers. As of December 31, 2015, the
Company’s loans from and guarantees of, obligations of borrowers to commercial entities and real estate
related loans were $10,323,902 and $61,025,624 respectively. Collateral for agricultural loans includes
equipment, crops, livestock, and land. Collateral for real estate loans includes property. The loans are
expected to be repaid from cash flows or proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrowers. Credit
losses from loans related to the agricultural economy are consistent with credit losses experienced in the
portfolio as a whole. The concentration of credit in the regional agricultural economy is taken into
consideration by management in determining the allowance for loan losses. Substantially all of the
Company’s loans and commitments have been granted to customers in the Company’s market area. The
distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding.

The Company had a concentration of funds on deposits over insured limits at December 3 1, as follows:

2015 2014
Interest-bearing:
Frost Bank Dallas, EBA $ 3,350,000 § 10,100,000
TIB Dallas, MMA 2,110,117 0
$ 5,460,117  § 10,100,000
2015 2014
Non-interest-bearing:
Federal Reserve Bank Dallas $ 0 3 207,209
Frost Bank Dallas 640,987 176,632
Total Non-interest-bearing: $ 640,987 $ 383,841

The nature of the Company’s business requires that it maintain amounts due from banks which, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

The Company held no deposit relationship that exceeded five percent of total deposits as of December 31,
2015 and 2014.

RELATED PARTIES

The Company has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary
course of business with directors, significant stockholder, principal officers, their immediate families and
affiliated companies in which they are principal stockholders (commonly referred to as related parties). In
management’s opinion, these loans and transactions were on the same terms as those for comparable loans
and transactions with non related parties.
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NOTE 10:

NOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

Aggregate loan transactions with related parties for year ended December 31, were as follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning $ 376,663 $ 336,962
New loans 128,896 356,013
Repayments (91,654) (316,312)
Balance, ending $ 413,905 $ 376,663

The Company received rental income in the amount of $4.488 from a related party that was considered to
be in the ordinary course of business for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company’s available line-of-credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank fluctuates based on the Bank’s
real estate portfolio available for collateral. The available balance totaled $39,375,118 and $26,838,678 as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company also has an unsecured line-of-credit available with Texas Independent Bankers totaling
$1,750,000 as of December 31,2015 and 2014.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company sponsors an employee stock ownership plan (the “Plan™). The purpose of the Plan is to
enable full-time employees who are at least twenty-one years of age and have been employed for at least
one year to acquire stock ownership in the Company. The employer shall determine the amount of
contributions made to the plan each year. The employer shall contribute to the Plan the amount necessary
to provide the top heavy minimum contribution. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company made contributions of $113,200 and $108,000, respectively. This contribution is included in
salaries and employee benefits expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding commitments and contingent
liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of
management any liability resulting from such commitments and contingent liabilities would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The estimated fair value amounts of the financial instruments have been determined by using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required
to interpret data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not

necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange.

The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts.

In addition, reasonable comparability between financial institutions may not be likely due to the wide range
of permitted valuation techniques and numerous estimates that must be made given the absence of active
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secondary markets for many of the financial instruments. This lack of uniform valuation methodologies
also introduces a greater degree of subjectivity to these estimated fair values.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows at December 31:

2015
Carrying Fair
Amount Value
Cash, cash equivalents, and interest-
bearing balances $ 8,349,846 $ 8,349,846
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale 14,759,793 14,759,793
Loans, net 81,103,605 81,995,000
Deposits 96,958,090 96,162,000

The Company has commitments to extend credit in the amount of $12,082,658 and standby letters of credit
in the amount of $484,785 as of December 31, 2015.

ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). ASC 820-10 applies to all financial instruments that are being measured and
reported on a fair value basis.

As defined in ASC 820-10, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair
value, the Company uses various methods including market, income, and cost approaches. Based on these
approaches, the Company often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation
technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable inputs.
The Company utilized valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques the
Company is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three
categories:

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and
federal agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active
markets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not
based on market exchange, dealer, or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate
certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or
liabilities.

The fair value of investment securities is the market value based on quoted market prices, when available,
or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers. If listed prices or quotes are not available, fair
value is based upon externally developed models that use unobservable inputs to the limited market activity
of the instrument.
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For fiscal years ended December 31. 2015 and 2014, the application of valuation techniques applied to
similar assets has been consistent. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for
instruments measured at fair value.

Cash and short-term investments
The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Investment securities

Valued at the close price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded. If
listed prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon externally developed models that use
unobservable inputs to the limited market activity of the instrument.

Loan receivables

For certain homogeneous categories of loans, such as some residential mortgages, credit card
receivables, and other consumer loans, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices for
securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. The fair value of
other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which
similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining
maturities.

Impaired loans

Based on the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral.
Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based upon internally discounted criteria.

Deposit liabilities

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is
estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and financial guarantees written

The fair value of commitments is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present
creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the
difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The fair values of the
guarantees and letters of credit are based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the
estimated costs to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the
reporting date. Estimating the fair values of the commitments and letters of credit is not practical when
considering the preceding factors.
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The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 12/31/2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Recurring fair value measurements:
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government
and agency
securities:
FHLB $ 3,998,380 0 $ 3,998,380 $ 0
FNMA 999,990 999,990
Mortgage-
backed
securities:
FNMA 1,185,346 0 1,185,346 0
FGMA 3,042,129 0 3,042,129 0
Collateralized
mortgage
obligations 998,268 0 998,268 0
Municipal bonds
(state) 3,501,240 0 3,501,240 0
Treasury
securities 1,034,440 0 1,034,440 0
Nonrecurring fair value measurements:
Impaired loans,
net 2,036,864 0 0 2,036,864
Total § 16,796,657 0 § 14,759,793  § 2,036,864
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The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are as follows for the year
ended December 31:

Impaired Loans

2015

Beginning balance $ 200,721
Principal / new additions to

impaired listing 2,017,667
Principal payments /

removals from impaired

listing (181,524)
Ending balance $ 2,036,864

The table below present the balances of assets measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 12/31/2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Recurring fair value measurements:
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government
and agency
securities:
FHLB $ 2,005,330 $ 0 $ 2,005,330 $ 0
Mortgage-backed
securities:
FNMA 1,419,430 0 1,419,430 0
FGMA 3,610,958 0 3,610,958 0
GNMA 55,843 0 55,843 0
Collateralized
mortgage
obligations 1,155,981 0 1,155,981 0
Municipal bonds
(state) 3,579,586 0 3,579,586 0
Nonrecurring fair value measurements:
Impaired Loans,
net 200,721 0 0 200,721
Total $ 12,027,849  § 0 $ 11,827,128  § 200,721
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NOTE 14:

The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are as follows for the year
ended December 31:

Impaired Loans

2014

Beginning balance $ 119,557
Principal / new additions to

impaired listing 94,820
Principal payments /

removals from impaired

listing (13,656)
Ending balance $ 200,721

REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly
additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the framework for prompt
corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of
the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
Judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2015, the Company meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2015, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
categorized the Company as well capitalized under regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To
be categorized as well capitalized the Company must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based,
and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since the notification
that management believes have changed the institution’s category.

The Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table:

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes: Action Provisions:
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2015:
Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 11,625,000 14.54% $ 6,396,240 8% § 7,995,300 10%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)  $ 10,804,000 13.51% $ 3,198,120 4% § 4,797,180 6%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets) $ 10,804,000 10.13% $ 4,264,520 4% § 5,330,650 5%
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As of December 31, 2014:

Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets)

To Be Well
Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes: Action Provisions:

Amount Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

§ 10,919,000 6,056,400 8% § 7,570,500 10%
§ 10,133,000 3,028,200 4% $ 4,542,300 6%
§ 10,133,000 4,309,520 4% § 5,386,900 5%
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993 North Third Street
PO Box 2993

Abilene, Texas 79604-2993
phone 325-677-6251

fax 325-677-0006

www.condley.com

Condle

AND COMPANY, LLP

Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors

March 2, 2016

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary
Coleman, Texas

Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Information

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary, as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and have issued our report thereon, dated March 2, 2016, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

WM me,,,,? )

Certified Public Accountants



COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks:
Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin $ 69,456 2,637,183
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 5,712,663
Securities available-for-sale 14,759,793
Investment in Coleman County State Bank 10,262,172
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,288,629 81,103,605
Accrued interest receivable 604,868
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $407,260 424,590
Premises and equipment, net 2,426,628
Other assets 247,349
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,756,218 107,492,089




$

$

Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

(69.,456)

(10,262,172)

$

2:637;183
5,712,663

14,759,793

81,103,605

604,868

424,590

2,426,628

247,349

(10,331,628)

$

107,916,679
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Demand deposits $ 31,673,007
Savings and NOW deposits 46,831,705
Other time deposits 18,522,834
Total deposits 0 97,027,546
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 0 202,371
Total Liabilities 0 97,229,917
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock 672,940 375,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,521,144 5,125,038
Retained earnings 8,636,832 4,836,832
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (74,698) (74,698)
Total Stockholders' Equity 10,756,218 10,262,172
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 10,756,218 107,492,089
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$

Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

671) $ 21,672,336
(68,785) 46,762,920
18,522,834
(69,456) 96,958,090
202,371
(69,456) 97,160,461
(375,000) 672,940
(5,125,038) 1,521,144
(4,836,832) 8,636,832
74,698 (74,698)
(10,262,172) 10,756,218
(10,331,628) $ 107,916,679




COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans receivable
Securities available-for-sale

Deposits with other financial institutions

Total Interest Income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits

Total Interest Expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Equity in earnings of subsidiary
Service charges and fees
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities

Other income

Total Other Income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense
Deposit insurance premium

Other expenses

Total Other Expenses

NET INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
$ 4,578,984
244,289
101 25,257
101 4,848.530
191,917
0 191,917
101 4,656.613
522.691
101 4,133,922
1,728.480
964,035
529
82,773
1,728,480 1,047,337
1,549,633
369,501
53.413
44,683 1,480,232
44,683 3,452,779
$ 1,683,898 1,728,480




Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

4,578,984
244,289

(101) 25,257

(101) 4,848,530
(101) 191,816
(101) 191,816

0 4,656,714

522,691

0 4,134,023
(1,728.480) 0
964,035

529

82,773

(1,728,480) 1,047,337
1.549.633

369,501

53,413

1,524,915

0 3.497,462
(1,728,480) 1,683,898
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation
Amortization and accretion
Provision for loan losses
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities
Decrease in accrued income and other assets

Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from maturities and sales of available-for-sale securities
Net increase in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment

Net increase in investment in Coleman County State Bank
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net increase in non-interest bearing demand, savings,

and NOW deposit accounts

Net decrease in time deposits
Dividends paid

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Due From Banks
Cash and Due From Banks at January 1

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS AT DECEMBER 31

Coleman

Coleman County

Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
$ 1,683,898 § 1,728,480
154,153
55.519
522,691
9,327
(529)
320.385
46,935
0 1.108.481
1,683,898 2.836.961
(64.035,803)
61,096.879
(4.165.151)
(172,891)

(203,480)

(203,480) (7,276,966)
1,904,624
87.278
(1,497.292) (1,525,000)
(1,497.292) 466,902
(16,874) (3,973,103)
86,330 12,322,949
$ 69,456 % 8,349,846
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Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

(1,728,480) $ 1.683.898
154,153

55.519

522,691

9,327
(529)

320,385

46,935

0 1,108,481
(1,728.480) 2,792,379
(64.035.803)

61.096.879

(4,165,151)

(172,891)

203,480 0
203,480 (7.276,966)
16.874 1,921,498
87,278

1,525,000 (1.497,292)
1,541.874 511,484
16,874 (3,973,103)
(86.330) 12,322,949
(69.456) $ 8,349,846
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March 2, 2016

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary
Coleman, Texas

Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary (the
“Company”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of their consolidated operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

CW“?W‘ C;ﬂf«y,/,./,.ﬁ.

Certified Public Accountants



COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED BAILANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2015 2014
ASSETS

Cash and due from banks:

Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin $ 2,637,183 $ 1,913,175

Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 5,712,663 10,409,774
Securities available-for-sale 14,759,793 11,827,128
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,288,629 and $784,878 for

2015 and 2014, respectively 81,103,605 77,461,145
Accrued interest receivable 604,868 669,230
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $407,260 424,590 424,590
Premises and equipment, net 2,426,628 2,417,217
Other assets 247,349 503,372
TOTAL ASSETS $ 107,916,679 $ 105,625,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:

Demand deposits
Savings and NOW deposits

Other time deposits

Total deposits

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common stock - $10 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, 67,294
shares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Stockholders' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$

December 31,

2015 2014
31,672,336 $ 29,681,996
46,762,920 46,831,762
18,522,834 18,435,556
96,958,090 94,949,314

202,371 155,436
97,160,461 95,104,750
672,940 672,940
1,521,144 1,521,144
8,636,832 8,450,226
(74,698) (123,429)
10,756,218 10,520,881

107,916,679 §

105,625,631




COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014
INTEREST INCOME:
Loans receivable $ 4,578,984 4,564,667
Securities available-for-sale 244,289 201,552
Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions 25,257 23,217
Total Interest Income 4,848,530 4,789,436
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits 191,816 227,359
Total Interest Expense 191,816 227,359
NET INTEREST INCOME 4,656,714 4,562,077
Provision for loan losses 522,691 64,500
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 4,134,023 4,497,577
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Service charges and fees 964,035 871,620
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities 529 0
Other income 82,773 84,761
Total Other Income 1,047,337 956,381
NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,549,633 1,511,473
Occupancy expense 369,501 293,828
Deposit insurance premium 53,413 49,791
Other expenses 1,524,915 1,453,244
Total Other Expenses 3,497,462 3,308,336
NET INCOME $ 1,683,898 2,145,622
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (See Independent Auditors' Report on
Supplementary Information):
Net income per share of common stock $ 25.02 31.88
Average shares outstanding 67,294 67,294

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014
NET INCOME $ 1,683,898 § 2,145,622
Other items of comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gain arising during period 49,260 269,926
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (529) 0
Total other items of comprehensive income 48,731 269,926
Comprehensive income before tax 1,732,629 2,415,548
Income tax expense related to other items of comprehensive income 0 0
Comprehensive income after tax $ 1,732,629 $ 2,415,548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Additional
Common Paid-In
Stock Capital
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 $ 672,940 $ 1,521,144
Net income for 2014
Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes of $0
Dividends on common stock, $20.00 per share
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2014 672,940 1,521,144
Net income for 2015
Net change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes of $0
Dividends on common stock, $22.25 per share
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 $ 672,940 $ 1,521,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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$

Accumulated
Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
7,650,484  § (393,355) § 9,451,213
2,145,622 2,145,622
269,926 269,926
(1,345,880) (1,345,880)
8,450,226 (123,429) 10,520,881
1,683,898 1,683,898
48,731 48,731
(1,497,292) (1,497,292)
8,636,832  § (74,698) $ 10,756,218




COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 1,683,898 $ 2,145,622
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 154,153 130,419
Amortization and accretion 55,519 71,326
Provision for loan losses 522,691 64,500
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment 9,327 0
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities (529) 0
Net realized loss on sale of foreclosed assets 0 24,084
(Increase) Decrease in accrued income and other assets 320,385 (40,875)
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 46,935 16,773
Total Adjustments 1,108,481 266,227
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,792,379 2,411,849
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (64,035,803) (3,510,435)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of available-for-sale securities 61,096,879 2,840,670
Net increase in loans (4,165,151) (1,260,746)
Purchases of premises and equipment (172,891) (264,374)
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 0 34,701
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (7,276,966) (2,160,184)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in non-interest bearing demand, savings,
and NOW deposit accounts 1,921,498 10,047,931
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits 87,278 (666,057)
Dividends paid (1,497,292) (1,345,880)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 511,484 8,035,994
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Due From Banks (3,973,103) 8,287,659
Cash and due from banks at January 1 12,322,949 4,035,290
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS AT DECEMBER 31 $ 8,349,846 § 12,322,949
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 194,939 $ 232,825
Income taxes paid (state taxes) $ 12,835 § 10,050
NONCASH AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repossessions acquired in settlement of loans $ 0§ 12,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1:

COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY
Coleman, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2015 and 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., (“Bancshares™)
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Coleman County State Bank, (the “Bank™) collectively referred to as the
"Company". All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America and general industry practices.

Nature of Operations

The Company conducts domestic financial services business through its bank in Coleman, Texas and its
branch in Abilene, Texas. The primary financial services provided by the Company include commercial,
agricultural, real estate financing, and personal and business loans to customers who are predominantly
small and middle-market businesses and middle-income individuals.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, and due from banks includes cash on hand
and demand deposits at other financial institutions including cash items in process of clearing and federal
funds sold under agreements to resell, all of which mature within 90 days. Cash flows from loans and
deposits are reported net.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

The Company, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") system, is required to maintain an
investment in capital stock of the FHLB in an amount equal to the greater of 1% of its outstanding home
loans or 5% of advances from the FHLB. No ready market exists for the FHLB stock, and it has no quoted
market value. The balance of the stock totaled $95,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Banks

Interest-bearing deposits in banks mature within one year and are carried at cost.

Trading Securities

Securities held for sale in the near term are classified as trading account securities and recorded at their fair
values. Unrealized gains and losses on trading account securities are included immediately in other
income. No trading securities were owned by the Company during the years 2015 and 2014 or at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Securities Held-to-Maturity

Securities for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost,
adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest method over
the period to maturity.
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Securities Available-for-Sale

Available-for-sale securities consist of securities not classified as trading securities nor as held-to-maturity
securities.

Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, on available-for-sale securities are reported as a net amount
in a separate component of stockholders’ equity until realized.

Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined using the specific-identification
method.

Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost,
that are other than temporary, result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. The
related write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses. The Company had no write-downs other
than temporary in 2015 or 2014.

Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to
maturity.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are those loans the Company has the intent to sell in the foreseeable future. They are
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through
a valuation allowance by charges to income. Gains and losses on sales of loans are recognized at
settlement dates and are determined by the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value of
the loans. There were no gains or losses realized on loans sold during the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014.

Loans Receivable

The Company generally originates single-family residential loans within its primary lending area in
Coleman and Abilene, Texas. The Company's underwriting policies require such loans to be 80% loan to
value based upon appraised values unless private mortgage insurance is obtained. These loans are secured
by the underlying properties. The Company is also active in originating secured consumer loans to its
customers, primarily automobile loans.

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or pay-off are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by unearned discount and fees and
an allowance for loan losses. Unearned interest on discounted loans is amortized to income over the life of
the loans, using the interest method. For all other loans, interest is accrued daily on the outstanding
balances.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that loan origination fees
and certain direct origination costs be capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related
loan. The Company has not done this to date as these fees and costs are not material to the financial
statements.

Discounts and premiums on purchased residential real estate loans are amortized to income using the
interest method over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated prepayments.
Discounts and premiums on purchased consumer loans are recognized over the expected lives of the loans
using methods that approximate the interest method. The Company had no residential real estate or
consumer purchased loans during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

For impaired loans, accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after
considering collection efforts and other factors that the borrower's financial condition is such that collection
of interest is doubtful. Cash collections on impaired loans are credited to the loan receivable balance, and
no interest income is recognized on those loans until the principal balance has been collected.

A loan is considered to be delinquent when payments have not been made according to contractual terms,
typically evidenced by nonpayment of a monthly installment by the due date. The accrual of interest on
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loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well-secured and in the
process of collection.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status or charged off is
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-
recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the
principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably
assured.

Each segment of loans has specific risks associated based on the nature of the loan. Loans secured by real
estate are influenced by real estate market conditions in the area in which the property is located as well as
the type of property the loan is secured by. Agriculture loans are subject to market prices as well as the
local weather conditions in determining future repayment and value of collateral. Commercial and
consumer loans are also subject to the local and national economic atmosphere, and the industry in which
the entity conducts business.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans
are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectability of the
principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses related
to specifically identified loans, as well as probable credit losses inherent in the balance of the loan
portfolio, based on an evaluation of the collectability of existing loans and prior loss experience. This
evaluation also takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that
may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. This evaluation does not include the effects of expected losses on
specific loans or groups of loans that are related to future events or expected changes in economic
conditions. While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future
adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions. In
addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’s allowance for loan losses, and may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance based on
their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations.

The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components. The specific component relates
to loans that are classified as either special mention, substandard, or doubtful. For such loans that are also
classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general
component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's
estimate of probable losses. The uncollected component of the allowance reflects the margin of
imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and
general losses in the portfolio. This methodology is consistent among all classes of loans.

A loan is impaired when it is probable, based on current information and events, the Company will be
unable to collect all contractual principal and interest payments due in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured on an individual basis for commercial and construction loans
based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or,
as a practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. The amount of impairment, if any, and any subsequent changes are included in the
allowance for loan losses.

Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.

Accordingly, the Company does not separately indentify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment disclosures.
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Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings are initially recorded at fair value at the date of
foreclosure less estimated costs of disposal, which establishes a new cost. After foreclosure, valuations are
periodically performed by management and foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or
fair value less estimated costs of disposal. Any write-down to fair value at the time of transfer to
foreclosed assets is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Property is evaluated regularly to ensure the
recorded amount is supported by its current fair value and valuation allowances to reduce the carrying
amount to fair value less estimated costs to dispose are recorded as necessary. Revenue and expense from
the operations of foreclosed assets and changes in the valuation allowance are included net expenses from
foreclosed assets.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Company premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization computed principally by the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was
$154,153 and $130,419 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 2001, Bancshares elected by unanimous consent of its stockholders to be taxed under
the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under such election, Bancshares’ federal
taxable income or loss is passed through to the individual stockholders for the year 2001 and for years
thereafter. Since the Company has maintained its Subchapter S status, management has not identified any
instances where an adjustment to the financial statements would be necessary in order to comply with ASC
740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer
subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. federal, state or local tax authorities for years before 2012.
State franchise taxes totaled $12,835 and $10,050 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and is
included in “Other expenses” on the consolidated statements of income due to the overall immateriality.

Loan-Servicing Rights

The cost of loan-servicing rights acquired is amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated
net servicing revenues. When participating interests in loans sold have an average contractual interest rate,
adjusted for normal servicing fees, that differs from the agreed yield to the purchaser, gains or losses are
recognized equal to the present value of such differential over the estimated remaining life of such loans.
The resulting “excess servicing fees receivable” or “deferred servicing revenue” is amortized over the
estimated life using a method approximating the interest method.

The unamortized cost of loan-servicing rights purchased, the excess servicing fees receivable, and the
amortization thereon is periodically evaluated in relation to estimated future net servicing revenues, taking
into consideration changes in interest rates, current prepayment rates, and expected future cash flows. The
Company evaluates the carrying value of the servicing portfolio by estimating the future net servicing
income of the portfolio based on management’s best estimate of remaining loan lives. The Company had
no loan servicing rights at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Financial Instruments

Interest-Rate Exchange Agreements. Interest-rate exchange agreements (swaps), used in asset/liability
management activities, are accounted for using the accrual method. Gains or losses on the sales of swaps
used in asset/liability management activities are deferred and amortized into interest income or expense
over the maturity period of the swap. Net interest income (expense), resulting from the differential
between exchanging floating and fixed-rate interest payments is recorded on a current basis. The Company
did not enter into any such agreements during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Financial Futures. Interest-rate futures contracts may be entered into by the Company as hedges against
exposure to interest-rate risk and not for speculation purposes. Changes in the market value of interest-rate
futures contracts are deferred and amortized into interest income or expense over the maturity period of the
hedged assets or liabilities. The Company did not enter into any such agreements during the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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Financial Options. Option premiums received for writing puts and calls are recorded as a liability
representing the market value of the option. The liability is to be subsequently marked to market at each
balance sheet date. The Company did not receive any financial options during the years ended December
31,2015 and 2014.

Other Off-Balance Sheet Instruments. In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off-
balance sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit
card arrangements, commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments
are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of the minority shareholders’ common stock in Coleman County
State Bank, acquired over the book value of the stock at the date of acquisition. Accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America does not allow for amortization of goodwill effective
for the year of 2002 and beyond in accordance with Statement of ASC 350-10, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. ASC 350-10 prescribes a periodic impairment test of goodwill, which the Company has
completed and determined no impairment issues for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 2, 2016, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2014-09 and ASU 2015-14

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) issued substantially converged final standards on revenue recognition. The FASB’s
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued in
three parts: (1) Section A, “Summary and Amendments That Create Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and Other Assets and Deferred Costs — Contracts With Customers™; (2) Section B, “Conforming
Amendments to Other Topics and Subtopics in the Codification and Status Tables”; and (3) Section C,
“Background Information and Basis for Conclusions”. In August 2015, ASU 2015-14 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date was issued.

ASU 2014-09 provides a robust framework for addressing revenue recognition issues and, upon its
effective date, replaces almost all existing revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific
guidance, in current U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This standard will help with
improved comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions, and
capital markets. Given the broad applicability and potentially significant ramifications of the guidance in
the ASU a deferral of the effective date was made with ASU 2015-14, and the ASU will not be effective
until 2018 for calendar end public entities, which includes not-for-profit entities that have issued, or are
conduit bond obligors for, securities that are traded, listed or quoted on an exchange or an over the count
market and in 2019 for all other entities.

ASU 2014-02

In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) through consensus of the Private
Company Council issued ASU 2014-02 Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) — Accounting for
Goodwill. As an alternative to the cost and complexity with applying the current goodwill accounting
practice and the limited relevance to users this ASU allows for the amortization of goodwill on a straight-
line basis over 10 years, or less than 10 years if the entity demonstrates that another useful life is more
appropriate. An entity that makes the election is further required to make an accounting policy election to
test goodwill for impairment at either the entity level or the reporting unit level when a triggering event
occurs.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force)

and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants did not or are not believed by management to
have a material impact on the Company's present or future financial statements.
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NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

Use of Estimates

In preparing the accompany financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of and revenue and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. A material estimate that is particularly sensitive to significant change in
the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.

RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Company is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank,
based on a percentage of deposits. The total of those reserve balances were $1,101,000 and $1,215,000 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES
Debt and equity securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets according to

management’s intent. The carrying amount of securities and their approximate fair values at December 31,
were as follows:

2015
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government and
agency securities $ 5,003,903 $ 0 $ (5,533) $ 4,998,370
Mortgage-backed securities 4,262,739 11,184 (46,447) 4,227,476
Collateralized mortgage
obligation securities 1,037,571 0 (39,304) 998,267
Treasury securities 1,035,800 0 (1,360) 1,034,440
State and municipal securities 3,494,478 6,762 0 3,501,240

$ 14,834,491 § 17,946 $ (92,644) $ 14,759,793

2014
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government and
agency securities $ 2,006,480 $ 0 9 (1,150) $ 2,005,330
Mortgage-backed securities 5,115,980 30,186 (59,935) 5,086,231
Collateralized mortgage
obligation securities 1,209,285 0 (53,304) 1,155,981
State and municipal securities 3,618,811 1,720 (40,946) 3,579,586

$§ 11,950,556 $§ 31,906 $§  (155,335) $ 11,827,128
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The scheduled maturities of securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2015, were as follows:

Available-for-sale

Securities
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 320,349 $ 320,291
Due from one year to five years 7,667,929 7,660,105
Due from five years to ten years 1,545,904 1,553,656
Due after ten years 5,300,309 5,225,741

§ 14,834,491 § 14,759,793

Securities carried at approximately $8,984,799 at December 31, 2015 and $9,230,593 at December 31,
2014, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law.

The Company held the following investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position
December 31, 2015:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Unrealized Unrealized
FMV Loss FMV Loss
U.S. government and agency
securities $ 0% 0% 2989430 $ (10,110)
Mortgage-backed securities 2,589,486 (50,797) 0 0
Collateralized mortgage obligation
securities 998.267 (39,304) 0 0
Treasury securities 0 0 1,034,440 (1,360)
State and municipal securities 0 0 1,144,250 (1,157)
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 3,587,753 § (90,101) $ 5,168,120 $ (12,627)

The Company held the following investments that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position
December 31, 2014:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Unrealized Unrealized
FMV Loss FMV Loss
U.S. government and agency
securities $ 1,005,330 $ (1,150) $ 093 0
Mortgage-backed securities 0 0 3,107,907 (59,935)
Collateralized mortgage obligation
securities 0 0 1,155,981 (53,304)
State and municipal securities 319,627 (334) 1,510,363 (40,612)
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 1324957 § (1,484) $ 5,774,251 $§ (153,851)

The above tables disclose the Company’s investment securities that have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position. The investment securities in the above tables are investments believed by management to be
normal investments for the banking industry. The Company does not believe the unrealized loss position
securities are “other than temporary” as (i) the Company has the ability to hold the investments to maturity,
(i) it is not probable that the Company will be unable to collect the amounts contractually, and (iii) no
decision to dispose of the investments was made prior to the balance sheet date. Management believes the
unrealized loss position securities noted above are caused by interest rate fluctuations. No credit issues
were identified related to the unrealized loss position securities.
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NOTE 4: LOANS RECEIVABLE

The components of loans in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 were as follows:

2015 2014
Commercial $ 10,323,902 $ 9,976,675
Agriculture 7,429,309 8,338,276
Real estate 61,025,624 56,544,268
Consumer 3,550,038 3,331,580
Overdrafts 72,411 68,721
Other (9,050) (13,497)
Subtotal 82,392,234 78,246,023
Allowance for loan losses (1,288,629) (784,878)

$ 81,103,605 $ 77,461,145

The Company purchased participations in loan agreements during 2015, with a total outstanding balance at
December 31, 2015 of $253,569. The total balance is considered to be loans for the purchase of residential
real estate. The total balance of purchased participation loan agreements at December 31, 2015 was
$253,569. The Company sold participations in loan agreements during 2015, with a total outstanding
balance at December 31, 2015 of $12,730,440, of which $5,897.487 is considered to be loans for
commercial purposes and $6,832,953 for non-farmland real estate. The total balance of participation sold
loan agreements at December 31, 2015 was $12,730,440.

An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan losses follows:

2015 2014
Balance at January 1, $ 784,878 % 746,982
Loans charged off (24,661) (36,196)
Recoveries 5,721 9,592
765,938 720,378
Provision for loan losses 522,691 64,500
Balance at December 31, $ 1,288,629 $ 784,878

A progression of the allowance for loan losses by type as of December 31, 2015 follows:

Beginning
Balance Charge-Offs Recoveries Provision Total
Commercial $ 245,522 § 0 S 2486 § 479,691 $ 727,699
Agriculture 63,827 0 0 12,000 75,827
Real estate 425,761 0 0 14,000 439,761
Consumer 44,471 (1,652) 6 2,000 44,825
Other 5,297 (23,009) 3,229 15,000 517
Total $ 784,878 $ (24,661) $ 5,721 § 522,691 § 1,288,629
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A progression of the allowance for loan losses by type as of December 31, 2014 follows:

Commercial $
Agriculture
Real estate
Consumer
Other

Total $

The allowance for loan losses consists of the following components as of December 31, 2015:

Commercial $
Agriculture
Real estate
Consumer
Other

Total $

The allowance for loan losses consists of the following components as of December 31, 2014:

Commercial $
Agriculture
Real estate
Consumer
Other

Total $

Beginning
Balance Charge-Offs Recoveries Provision Total

226,428 $ 0 S 3,094 S 16,000 $ 245,522
48,827 0 0 15,000 63,827
426,786 (17,025) 0 16,000 425,761
43,519 (1,548) 0 2,500 44,471
1,422 (17,623) 6,498 15,000 5,297
746,982 $ (36,196) § 9,592  § 64,500 § 784,878

Acquired
With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
767,699 § 507,157 $ 220,542 $ 0
75,827 0 75,827 0
439,761 4,247 435,514 0
44,825 0 44,825 0
517 0 517 0
1,288,629 $ 511,404 S 777,225 § 0

Acquired
With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
245,522 § 0§ 245,522 $ 0
63,827 60,755 3,072 0
425,761 4,985 420,776 0
44,471 0 44,471 0
5,297 0 5,297 0
784,878 $ 65,740 $ 719,138 § 0
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Loans receivable were evaluated for the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2015 as follows:

Commercial $
Agriculture
Real estate
Consumer
Other

Total $

Acquired
With
Individually Collectively Deteriorated
Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit
Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
10,323,902 § 50,866 § 10,273,036 § 0
7,429,309 0 7,429,309 0
61,025,624 676,200 60,349,424 0
3,550,038 0 3,550,038 0
63,361 0 63,361 0
82,392,234 § 727,066 $ 81,665,168 $ 0

Loans receivable were evaluated for the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2014 as follows:

Commercial $
Agriculture
Real estate
Consumer
Other

Total $

Acquired
With

Individually Collectively Deteriorated

Ending Evaluated For Evaluated For Credit

Balance Impairment Impairment Quality
9,976,675 $ 501 § 9,976,174 § 0
8,338,276 166,754 8,171,522 0
56,544,268 99,707 56,444,561 0
3,331,580 0 3,331,580 0
55,224 0 55,224 0
78,246,023 § 266,962 $ 77,979,061 § 0

Certain credit quality indicators as used to develop the Bank’s allowance for loan losses by class of loans
receivable as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Commercial

General

Vehicles and
equipment

Agriculture
Livestock
Vehicles and

equipment
Other

Real Estate
Farmland
Commercial
Residential
Non-farmland

Total Loans

Pass OAEM Substandard Receivable
1,627,291 § 0 S 0 3 1,627,291
6,360,139 193,106 2,143,366 8,696,611
4,917,874 0 0 4,917,874
2,151,659 158,668 0 2,310,327

201,108 0 0 201,108
8,964,087 294,214 52,764 9,311,065
5,067,959 0 0 5,067,959

17,283,681 733,364 344,408 18,361,453

27,686,152 0 598,995 28,285,147
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Total Loans

Pass OAEM Substandard Receivable
Consumer
Personal 1,041,909 22,107 0 1,064,016
Automobile 2,478,499 7,523 0 2,486,022
Other 63,361 0 0 63,361
Total $ 77,843,719 § 1,408,982 $ 3,139,533  § 82,392,234

Certain credit quality indicators as used to develop the Company’s allowance for loan losses by class of
loans receivable as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Total Loans
Pass OAEM Substandard Receivable

Commercial
General $ 3,191,110 § 0 3 0 $ 3,191,110
Vehicles and

equipment 6,785,064 0 501 6,785,565
Agriculture
Livestock 5,787,105 0 88,630 5,875,735
Vehicles and

equipment 2,125,984 0 78,124 2,204,108
Other 258,433 0 0 258,433
Real Estate
Farmland 12,098,021 347,772 0 12,445,793
Commercial 3,910,020 0 0 3,910,020
Residential 15,847,438 434,682 33,258 16,315,378
Non-farmland 23,806,627 0 66,449 23,873,076
Consumer
Personal 331,622 15,396 0 347,018
Automobile 2,966,935 17,627 0 2,984,562
Other 55,225 0 0 55,225
Total $ 77,163,584 $§ 815,477 $ 266,962 $ 78,246,023

The Company utilizes an asset quality rating system in order to assess credit quality. The following ratings
are used for criticized and classified assets. All remaining assets are referred to as “Pass”.

Criticized Asset — OAEM — Loans in this category have existing or potential credit weaknesses that could
ultimately lead to a more sever classification. The weaknesses could relate to collateral, documentation,
finances, repayment ability, economic conditions, performance, or any other area. These assets should be
monitored closely for further deterioration.

Classified Asset — Substandard — Loans in this category have specific weaknesses that jeopardize the
liquidation of the debt. Collateral, net worth, insufficient cash flow to support borrowings, and loss
potential exists unless the deficiencies are corrected. These assets merit close attention and corrective
actions in order to ensure their ultimate collections.

Classified Asset — Doubtful — These loans have a high probability of loss. The extent of loss is not exactly

determinable due to mitigating factors that could enhance collectability of the loan such as proposed
mergers, acquisitions, liquidations procedures, capital injection, additional collateral, or refinancing efforts.
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Charge off of doubtful loans is made when appropriate and not necessarily deferred until a more exact
status can be ascertained.

Classified Asset — Loss — These loans are those that are not bankable assets in their present state. The loan
is a recovery matter and while some recovery may be realized, debt satisfaction is not likely in the near

term.

The Company had no “Doubtful” or “Loss” assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014; therefore, they were
not included in the detail above.

Loans transferred to foreclosed assets totaled $0 and $12,047 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Loans on
non-accrual status totaled $108,144 and $166,804 at December 31, 2015 and 2014 respectively. Loans past
due over 90 days totaled $443,973 and $235,555 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
Company is not committed to lend additional funds to debtors whose loans have been modified.

The Company had the following investments in impaired loans as of December 31, 2015:

Commercial
Vehicles and
equipment

Agriculture
Livestock
Vehicles and

equipment

Real Estate
Residential
Non-farmland

Consumer
Automobile

Total

Commercial
Vehicles and
equipment

Agriculture
Livestock
Vehicles and

equipment

Real Estate
Residential

Average

Unpaid Quarterly Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
1,956,176 § 2,463,333 § 507,157 § 62,796 $ 27551
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
27,657 27,657 0 0 0
53,031 57,278 4,247 4,618 3,767
0 0 0 0 0
2,036,864 § 2,548,268 § 511,404 § 67,414 $ 31,318

The Bank had the following investments in impaired loans as of December 31, 2014:
Average

Unpaid Quarterly Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
0 § 0 S 0 § 5,708 § 966
27,875 88,630 60,755 88,630 0
78,124 78,124 0 78,124 0
33,258 33,258 0 35,773 2,835
61,464 66,449 4,985 62,811 5,046

Non-farmland
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Average
Unpaid Quarterly Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
Consumer
Automobile 0 0 0 2,801 108
Total $ 200,721  $ 266,461 $ 65,740 $ 273,847 § 8,955
The age analysis of past due financing receivables as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:
Days Past Due
Total
30-59 60-89 Greater than Total Loans
Days Days 90 Days' Past Due Current Receivable
Commercial
General $ 129,001 $ 0 $ 0 $ 129,001 1,498,290 $ 1,627,291
Vehicles and
equipment 0 0 384,921 384,921 8,311,690 8,696,611
Agriculture
Livestock 22,905 0 0 22,905 4,894,969 4,917,874
Vehicles and
equipment 14,557 0 0 14,557 2,295,770 2,310,327
Other 0 0 0 0 201,108 201,108
Real Estate
Farmland 0 0 0 0 9,311,065 9,311,065
Commercial 0 0 0 0 5,067,959 5,067,959
Residential 764,073 16,237 0 780,310 17,581,143 18,361,453
Non-
farmland 195,201 0 57,278 252,479 28,032,668 28,285,147
Consumer
Personal 36,220 0 661 36,881 1,027,135 1,064,016
Automobile 70,610 11,163 1,113 82,886 2,403,136 2,486,022
Other 0 0 0 0 63,361 63,361
Total $ 1,232,567 § 27,400 $ 443973 § 1,703,940 $ 80,688,294 § 82,392,234

Loans totaling $386,695 past due greater than ninety days were accruing interest as of December 31, 2015 as
management believes they are adequately collateralized and in process of collection.
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NOTE 5:

The age analysis of past due financing receivables as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Days Past Due

Total
30-59 60-89 Greater than Total Loans
Days Days 90 Days! Past Due Current Receivable

Commercial
General $ 0 3 0 3 0 $ 0 3,191,110 $ 3,191,110
Vehicles and

equipment 319,146 50,000 501 369,647 6,415,918 6,785,565
Agriculture
Livestock 1,088 9,000 90,480 100,568 5,775,167 5,875,735
Vehicles and

equipment 99,495 11,000 78,124 188,619 2,015,489 2,204,108
Other 0 0 0 0 258,433 258,433
Real Estate
Farmland 88,692 120,966 0 209,658 12,236,135 12,445,793
Commercial 0 0 0 0 3,910,020 3,910,020
Residential 497,567 19,313 0 516,880 15,798,498 16,315,378
Non-

farmland 223,072 0 66,449 289,521 23,583,555 23,873,076
Consumer
Personal 27,655 2,461 0 30,116 316,902 347,018
Automobile 24,698 35,077 0 59,775 2,924,787 2,984,562
Other 0 0 0 0 58,225 55.225
Total $ 1,281413 $ 247817 $ 235,554 § 1,764,784 $ 76,481,239 § 78,246,023

Loans totaling $68,750 past due greater than ninety days were accruing interest as of December 31, 2014 as
management believes they are adequately collateralized and in process of collection.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Components of premises and equipment included in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, were
as follows:

2015 2014
Cost:
Land $ 574,305 $ 574,304
Bank premises 2,935,064 2,969,831
Furniture and equipment 1,159,412 2,229,440
Total cost 4,668,781 5,773,575
Less accumulated depreciation (2,242,153) (3,356,358)
Net book value $ 2,426,628 $ 2,417,217

Certain Company facilities and equipment are leased under various operating leases. Rental expense was
$11,894 in 2014 and $11,175 in 2015. Payment requirements for operating leases for the fiscal years
ending 2016, 2017, and 2018 are $9,929, $9,929, and $2,349 respectively.
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NOTE 6:

NOTE 7:

DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, follows:

2015 2014
Non-interest bearing demand $ 31,672,336 $§ 29,681,996
Interest-bearing demand 39,919,023 40,177,243
Savings 6,843,897 6,654,519
Certificates of deposit of $100,000
or more 11,603,484 11,158,866
Other time deposits 6,919,350 7,276,690

$ 96,958,000 § 94,949,314

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, overdraft demand deposits reclassified to loans totaled $72,411 and
$68,721, respectively.

At December 31, 2015, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposits and other time deposits are as
follows:

Year ending
2016 $ 13,994,883
2017 927,282
2018 96,440
2019 and thereafter 3,504,229

$ 18,522,834

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit. They involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent
of the Company’s involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based
on management’s credit evaluation of the counterpart. Collateral held varies but may include accounts
receivable, crops, livestock, inventory, property, plant and equipment, residential real estate, income-
producing commercial properties and other financial instruments.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies and is required in instances in
which the Company deems necessary.
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NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments in either 2015 or 2014.

A summary of the notional amounts of the Company’s financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at
December 31, 2015, follows:

Notional

Amount
Commitments to extend credit $ 12,082,658
Standby letters of credit 484,785

SIGNIFICANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers located within its market area. Investments in
state and municipal securities involve governmental entities within the state. Although the Company’s loan
portfolio is diversified, there is a relationship in this region between the agricultural economy and the
economic performance of loans made to nonagricultural customers. As of December 31, 2015, the
Company’s loans from and guarantees of, obligations of borrowers to commercial entities and real estate
related loans were $10,323,902 and $61,025,624 respectively. Collateral for agricultural loans includes
equipment, crops, livestock, and land. Collateral for real estate loans includes property. The loans are
expected to be repaid from cash flows or proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrowers. Credit
losses from loans related to the agricultural economy are consistent with credit losses experienced in the
portfolio as a whole. The concentration of credit in the regional agricultural economy is taken into
consideration by management in determining the allowance for loan losses. Substantially all of the
Company’s loans and commitments have been granted to customers in the Company’s market area. The
distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding.

The Company had a concentration of funds on deposits over insured limits at December 31, as follows:

2015 2014
Interest-bearing:
Frost Bank Dallas, EBA $ 3,350,000 $ 10,100,000
TIB Dallas, MMA 2,110,117 0
$ 5,460,117  $ 10,100,000
2015 2014
Non-interest-bearing:
Federal Reserve Bank Dallas $ 0 $ 207,209
Frost Bank Dallas 640,987 176,632
Total Non-interest-bearing: $ 640,987 $ 383,841

The nature of the Company’s business requires that it maintain amounts due from banks which, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

The Company held no deposit relationship that exceeded five percent of total deposits as of December 31,
2015 and 2014.

RELATED PARTIES

The Company has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary
course of business with directors, significant stockholder, principal officers, their immediate families and
affiliated companies in which they are principal stockholders (commonly referred to as related parties). In
management’s opinion, these loans and transactions were on the same terms as those for comparable loans
and transactions with non related parties.
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NOTE 10:

NOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

Aggregate loan transactions with related parties for year ended December 31, were as follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning $ 376,663 $ 336,962
New loans 128,896 356,013
Repayments (91,654) (316,312)
Balance, ending $ 413,905 $ 376,663

The Company received rental income in the amount of $4,488 from a related party that was considered to
be in the ordinary course of business for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company’s available line-of-credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank fluctuates based on the Bank’s
real estate portfolio available for collateral. The available balance totaled $39,375,118 and $26,838,678 as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company also has an unsecured line-of-credit available with Texas Independent Bankers totaling
$1,750,000 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company sponsors an employee stock ownership plan (the “Plan”). The purpose of the Plan is to
enable full-time employees who are at least twenty-one years of age and have been employed for at least
one year to acquire stock ownership in the Company. The employer shall determine the amount of
contributions made to the plan each year. The employer shall contribute to the Plan the amount necessary
to provide the top heavy minimum contribution. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company made contributions of $113,200 and $108,000, respectively. This contribution is included in
salaries and employee benefits expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding commitments and contingent
liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of
management any liability resulting from such commitments and contingent liabilities would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The estimated fair value amounts of the financial instruments have been determined by using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required
to interpret data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not

necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange.

The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts.

In addition, reasonable comparability between financial institutions may not be likely due to the wide range
of permitted valuation techniques and numerous estimates that must be made given the absence of active
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secondary markets for many of the financial instruments. This lack of uniform valuation methodologies
also introduces a greater degree of subjectivity to these estimated fair values.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows at December 31:

2015
Carrying Fair
Amount Value
Cash, cash equivalents, and interest-
bearing balances $ 8,349,846 $ 8,349,846
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale 14,759,793 14,759,793
Loans, net 81,103,605 81,995,000
Deposits 96,958,090 96,162,000

The Company has commitments to extend credit in the amount of $12,082,658 and standby letters of credit
in the amount of $484,785 as of December 31, 2015.

ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). ASC 820-10 applies to all financial instruments that are being measured and
reported on a fair value basis.

As defined in ASC 820-10, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair
value, the Company uses various methods including market, income, and cost approaches. Based on these
approaches, the Company often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation
technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable inputs.
The Company utilized valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques the
Company is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three
categories:

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and
federal agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active
markets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not
based on market exchange, dealer, or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate
certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or
liabilities.

The fair value of investment securities is the market value based on quoted market prices, when available,
or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers. If listed prices or quotes are not available, fair
value is based upon externally developed models that use unobservable inputs to the limited market activity
of the instrument.
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For fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the application of valuation techniques applied to
similar assets has been consistent. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for
instruments measured at fair value.

Cash and short-term investments
The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Investment securities

Valued at the close price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded. If
listed prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon externally developed models that use
unobservable inputs to the limited market activity of the instrument.

Loan receivables

For certain homogeneous categories of loans, such as some residential mortgages, credit card
receivables, and other consumer loans, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices for
securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. The fair value of
other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which
similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining
maturities.

Impaired loans

Based on the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral.
Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based upon internally discounted criteria.

Deposit liabilities

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is
estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and financial guarantees written

The fair value of commitments is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present
creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the
difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The fair values of the
guarantees and letters of credit are based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the
estimated costs to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the
reporting date. Estimating the fair values of the commitments and letters of credit is not practical when
considering the preceding factors.
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The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 12/31/2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Recurring fair value measurements:
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government
and agency
securities:
FHLB $ 3,998,380 $ 0 $ 3,998,380 $ 0
FNMA 999,990 999,990
Mortgage-
backed
securities:
FNMA 1,185,346 0 1,185,346 0
FGMA 3,042,129 0 3,042,129 0
Collateralized
mortgage
obligations 998,268 0 998,268 0
Municipal bonds
(state) 3,501,240 0 3,501,240 0
Treasury
securities 1,034,440 0 1,034,440 0
Nonrecurring fair value measurements:
Impaired loans,
net 2,036,864 0 0 2,036,864
Total $ 16,796,657  § 0 $ 14,759,793  § 2,036,864
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The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are as follows for the year
ended December 31:

Impaired Loans

2015

Beginning balance $ 200,721
Principal / new additions to

impaired listing 2,017,667
Principal payments /

removals from impaired

listing (181,524)
Ending balance $ 2,036,864

The table below present the balances of assets measured at fair value:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 12/31/2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Recurring fair value measurements:
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government
and agency
securities:
FHLB $ 2,005,330 $ 0 $ 2,005,330 $ 0
Mortgage-backed
securities:
FNMA 1,419,430 0 1,419,430 0
FGMA 3,610,958 0 3,610,958 0
GNMA 55,843 0 55,843 0
Collateralized
mortgage
obligations 1,155,981 0 1,155,981 0
Municipal bonds
(state) 3,579,586 0 3,579,586 0
Nonrecurring fair value measurements:
Impaired Loans,
net 200,721 0 0 200,721
Total $ 12,027,849  § 0 $ 11,827,128  $ 200,721
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NOTE 14:

The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are as follows for the year
ended December 31:

Impaired Loans

2014

Beginning balance $ 119,557
Principal / new additions to

impaired listing 94,820
Principal payments /

removals from impaired

listing (13,656)
Ending balance $ 200,721

REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly
additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the framework for prompt
corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of
the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2015, the Company meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2015, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
categorized the Company as well capitalized under regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To
be categorized as well capitalized the Company must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based,
and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since the notification
that management believes have changed the institution’s category.

The Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table:

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes: Action Provisions:
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2015:

Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 11,625,000 14.54% § 6,396,240 8% $ 7,995,300 10%

Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 10,804,000 13.51% § 3,198,120 4% $ 4,797,180 6%

Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets) $ 10,804,000 10.13% $ 4,264,520 4% $ 5,330,650 5%
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To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes: Action Provisions:
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2014:

Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets) § 10,919,000 14.42% § 6,056,400 8% $ 7,570,500 10%

Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 10,133,000 13.38% § 3,028,200 4% $ 4,542,300 6%

Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets) $ 10,133,000 9.41% $ 4,309,520 4% $ 5,386,900 5%
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993 North Third Street

O n e PO Box 2993

Abilene, Texas 79604-2993

phone 325-677-6251

AND COMPANY, LLP S i

Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors www.condley.com

March 2, 2016

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary
Coleman, Texas

Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Information

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Coleman Bancshares, Inc., and Subsidiary, as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and have issued our report thereon, dated March 2, 2016, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Cmﬂd@fm/i C”'f””'?' L.LP

Certified Public Accountants
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks:
Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin $ 69,456 % 2,637,183
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 5,712,663
Securities available-for-sale 14,759,793
Investment in Coleman County State Bank 10,262,172
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,288,629 81,103,605
Accrued interest receivable 604,868
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $407,260 424,590
Premises and equipment, net 2,426,628
Other assets 247,349
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,756,218  § 107,492,089

34



$

$

Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

(69,456)

(10,262,172)

$

2,637,183
5,712,663

14,759,793

81,103,605

604,868

424,590

2,426,628

247,349

(10,331,628)

$

107,916,679

35



COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Demand deposits $ $ 31,673,007
Savings and NOW deposits 46,831,705
Other time deposits 18,522,834
Total deposits 0 97,027,546
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 0 202,371
Total Liabilities 0 97,229,917
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock 672,940 375,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,521,144 5,125,038
Retained earnings ' 8,636,832 4,836,832
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (74,698) (74,698)
Total Stockholders' Equity 10,756,218 10,262,172
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 10,756,218  § 107,492,089
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$

Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

671) $ 21,672,336
(68,785) 46,762,920
18,522,834

(69,456) 96,958,090

202,371

(69,456) 97,160,461
(375,000) 672,940
(5,125,038) 1,521,144
(4,836,832) 8,636,832
74,698 (74,698)
(10,262,172) 10,756,218
(10,331,628) ' $ 107,916,679
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COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans receivable
Securities available-for-sale

Deposits with other financial institutions

Total Interest Income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits

Total Interest Expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Equity in earnings of subsidiary
Service charges and fees
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities

Other income

Total Other Income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense
Deposit insurance premium

Other expenses

Total Other Expenses

NET INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
$ 4,578,984
244,289
101 25,257
101 4,848,530
191.917
0 191,917
101 4,656,613
522,691
101 4,133,922
1,728,480
964,035
529
82.773
1,728.480 1.047.337
1,549,633
369,501
53,413
44,683 1,480,232
44,683 3,452,779
$ 1,683,898 1,728,480




$

Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

$ 4,578,984

244,289

(101) 25,257

(101) 4,848,530

(101) 191,816

(101) 191,816

0 4,656,714

522,691

0 4,134,023
(1,728.480) 0
964,035

529

82,773

(1,728.480) 1,047,337
1,549,633

369,501

53,413

1,524,915

0 3.497.462
(1,728.480)  § 1,683,898




COLEMAN BANCSHARES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARY

Coleman, Texas

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Coleman
Coleman County
Bancshares, Inc. State Bank
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income 1,683,898 §$ 1,728,480
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 154,153
Amortization and accretion 55,519
Provision for loan losses 522,691
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment 9,327
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities (529)
Decrease in accrued income and other assets 320,385
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 46,935
Total Adjustments 0 1,108,481
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,683,898 2,836,961
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (64,035,803)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of available-for-sale securities 61,096.879
Net increase in loans (4,165,151)
Purchases of premises and equipment (172,891)
Net increase in investment in Coleman County State Bank (203,480)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (203,480) (7.276,966)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in non-interest bearing demand, savings,
and NOW deposit accounts 1,904,624
Net decrease in time deposits 87,278

Dividends paid (1,497,292) (1,525,000)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (1,497,292) 466,902
Net Decrease in Cash and Due From Banks (16,874) (3,973,103)
Cash and Due From Banks at January 1 86,330 12,322,949
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS AT DECEMBER 31 69,456 $ 8,349,846
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Eliminations and

Reclassifications

Consolidated

$ (1,728,480) 1.683.898
154,153

55,519

522,691

9,327
(529)

320,385

46,935

0 1,108,481
(1,728,480) 2,792,379
(64,035.803)

61,096,879
(4,165,151)
(172.891)

203,480 0
203,480 (7.276.,966)
16,874 1,921,498
87.278
1,525,000 (1,497.292)
1,541,874 511,484
16,874 (3.973,103)
(86,330) 12,322,949

$ (69.456) $ 8,349,846
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